
          

 

SEBASTIAN RIVER 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 
 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
JULY 19, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.sridfl.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 
AGENDA 

SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

Indian River County Administration Complex 
Bldg. A, Room A1-102 

1801 27th Street 
Vero Beach, Florida 32960 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
July 19, 2023 

10:00 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………….…….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Approval of Minutes  

1. June 14, 2023 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………………..Page 2 

F. Old Business 

G. New Business 

1. Lateral C – Radial Gates Maintenance Recommendation………………………………………….Page 5 

2. Discussion Regarding Offer Package from FDOT…………………………………………………Page 11 

H. Administrative Matters 

1. Sand Mine Update 

2. Financial Update…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 206 

3. Engineer Update 

4. Manager Update 

I. Board Members Comments 

J. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

K. Adjourn 



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
NOTICE OF SPECIAL BOARD MEETING  

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Sebastian River 
Improvement District (“District”) will hold a Special Board Meeting (“Meeting”) on July 19, 2023, at 
10:00 a.m. at the Indian River County Administration Complex, Building A-1, Room 102, 1800 27th 
Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960. 

 
The purpose of the Special Board Meeting is to conduct any business which may properly come before 
the Board.  The meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions 
of Florida law.  There may be occasions when Board members or District Staff may participate by 
speaker telephone.  A copy of the Agenda for the meeting may be obtained from the District’s website 
(www.sridfl.org) or by contacting the District Manager at (772) 345-5119. 
 
Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical 
impairment should contact the District Manager’s Office at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the 
meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-
1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) / 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the District Manager’s 
Office. 
 
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 
considered at the public hearing or meeting is advised that person will need a record of proceedings 
and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 
 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.sebastianriverid.org 
 
PUBLISH:  INDIAN RIVER PRESS JOURNAL   07/12/23 

Page 1



 
 

 

SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 14, 202. 
 
 

A. Call to Order  

The June 14, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Sebastian River Improvement District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:24 a.m. in the Indian River County Administration Complex, 
Building A, Room A1-102, 1801 27th Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960. 
 
B. Proof of Publication  

Proof of publication was presented showing that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in Indian River Press Journal on May 18, 2023 and May 25, 2023, as legally required. 
 
C. Establish Quorum 

A quorum was established with the following Supervisors present: 
 
Board of Supervisors  

Supervisor Jeff Bass Present 

Supervisor Tom Hammond Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 

District Manager Frank Sakuma Special District Services, Inc. 

Intern Belhaim Sakuma Special District Services, Inc. 

District Counsel Ruth Holmes Gonano & Harrell 

District Engineer Clint Rahjes Carter Associates, Inc. 

 
Landowners’ Meeting Election Results & Election of Officers 

1. Mr. Sakuma notified the Board that during the preceding Landowners’ meeting Jeff Bass 
had been elected to serve a three year term ending in 2026. 

 
2. Mr. Sakuma offered the following slate of officers for Board consideration: 

 Jeff Bass – Chairman 
 Chad Kelly – Vice Chairman 
 Tom Hammond – Assistant Secretary 
 Frank Sakuma – Secretary/Treasurer 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Bass, seconded by Mr. Hammond approving the slate of officers as 
presented. The motion approving the officers passed unanimously.  
 
D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

The Board authorized the addition of “R&S Metal Works Proposal” to the New Business section 
of the agenda 

Page 2



 
 

 

 
E. Approval of Minutes 

1. April 12, 2023, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 
Mr. Sakuma informed the Board of a necessary edit to the draft minutes, related to the Liberty 
Park presentation. A motion was made by Mr. Hammond, seconded by Mr. Bass approving the 
minutes of the April 12, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as amended. The motion approving the 
minutes passed unanimously. 
 
F. OLD BUSINESS 

There were no items.   
 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed 

Budget 
 

Resolution No. 2023-01 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SEBASTIAN 
RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
Mr. Sakuma discussed several line items in the proposed budget and answered questions from the 
Board. He also confirmed the final approved budget would be considered at the September Board 
meeting. 
 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Hammond, seconded by Mr. Bass and passed 
unanimously to adopt Resolution 2023-01, as presented, and setting the public hearing on the final 
approved budget for September 13, 2023. 
 

2.  R&S Metalworks Proposal 
 
Mr. Sakuma advised of necessary repairs to a hole in the Lateral C water control structure. The 
Board asked for staff to notify landowners if the repairs would take more than one day, and also 
for the contractor to inspect the adjacent panel and replace if needed. 
 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Bass, seconded by Mr. Hammond and passed 
unanimously to authorize R&S Metalworks to repair the Lateral C water control structure under 
the conditions noted above.  
 
H. Administrative Matters 

 
1. Sand Mine Update 

Mr. Simons advised that all the sand mine renewals had been complete. 
 

Page 3



 
 

 

2. Financial Update 

Having discussed finances during consideration of a proposed budget, Mr. Sakuma had no further 
information to offer the Board.  
 
I. Board Member Comments 
 
Mr. Bass advised the Board that Graves Brothers was aware of a failed culvert and were evaluating 
what actions they would take to repair. Mr. Simons was congratulated on the most recent sale of 
his firm and was asked if he would continue with Carter Associates. He advised he would remain 
full time for two years and then part time for three further years. SRID would continue to be a 
client if the Board so desires.  
 
J. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda  

There were no comments from the public.  
 
K. Adjournment 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting of the 
District was adjourned at 9:46 a.m.  
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chair/Vice-Chairman 

Page 4



1

Frank Sakuma

From: Robert Stillwaggon <besdad08@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, July 3, 2023 12:23 PM
To: Frank Sakuma
Subject: Fwd: Recommended Coating - Radial Canal Gates
Attachments: 90-97.pdf; 142.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Frank;  
 Maintenance is needed on lateral C radial gates for preventative maintenance or failure. They are in need of 
sandblasting at all areas where the original galvanizing has worn off. Sandblasting may expose areas that will 
need repair of removing and welding in new material or just welding plate over affected area, plate over holes at 
both sides to keep moisture from entering between plate layers if it allows. Bolt on parts should be removed for 
proper sandblasting and reinstalled after applying proper multi layered coatings for corrosion prevention.  
 I’ve contacted Tnemic for a recommendation of proper coatings that would be appropriate for the radial gates 
exposed and submerged.  
Forwarded is a pdf of their recommendation. If this is something we can add to the board meeting and it’s 
possible we can move forward with the project. We can bid it out to multiple contractors as usual for a 
competitive price.  
Thanks 
Robert Stillwaggon 

 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Arias, Ignacio" <arias@tnemec.com> 
Date: June 27, 2023 at 5:41:09 PM EDT 
To: besdad08@yahoo.com 
Cc: "Holmes, Blake" <bholmes@tnemec.com> 
Subject: RE: Recommended Coating - Radial Canal Gates 

  
Good day Robert,

Thank you again for taking the time to discuss the upcoming project for Sebastian River Improvement
District. I would greatly appreciate any drawings or photographs of the Radial Canal Gates. This will
help me understand the scope of work involved, so I can put together a specification. The Tnemec
products we would recommend would be, after abrasive blasting the structures, removing any/all
existing coatings, prime with Tnemec Tmeme Zinc Series 90 97, an advanced technology, two
component, moisture cured, zinc rich primer. Being user friendly and to be applied same day after
prep. The topcoat would be our Epoxoline Series 142, our glass flake reinforced modified polyamide
epoxy, formulated to be abrasive resistant, offering high build edge protection, available in standard
industry colors, Light Gray, Beige, and Black. Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any
questions.

Ignacio “Nacho” Arias | AMPP Basic Coating Inspector, Level 1

Page 5



2

Florida Protective Coatings Services, Inc. | Coatings Consultant
754 465 3707 | arias@tnemec.com
To see what makes Tnemec a different kind of coatings manufacturer, visit
www.tnemec.com/performance matters.

 

From: Arias, Ignacio
Sent:Monday, June 26, 2023 12:00 PM
To: besdad08@yahoo.com
Cc: Holmes, Blake <bholmes@tnemec.com>
Subject: Recommended Coating Radial Canal Gates

Good day Robert,

Thank you for contacting Tnemec Coatings for a recommendation for the Radial Canal Gates located
within the Sebastian River Improvement District. If you have a few minutes, please give me a call to
discuss the project? My direct line is 754 465 3707, thank you.

Ignacio “Nacho” Arias | AMPP Basic Coating Inspector, Level 1
Florida Protective Coatings Services, Inc. | Coatings Consultant
754 465 3707 | arias@tnemec.com
To see what makes Tnemec a different kind of coatings manufacturer, visit
www.tnemec.com/performance matters.
<image001.png> 

 

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the 
recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited 
and may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast 
Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your 
human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 

Page 6



TNEME-ZINC

PRODUCT DATA SHEET

SERIES 90-97

  PRODUCT PROFILE

GENERIC DESCRIPTION Aromatic Urethane, Zinc-Rich

COMMON USAGE An advanced technology, two-component, moisture-cured, zinc-rich primer providing extraordinary performance. It’s user
friendly and rapid curing so chemical- and corrosion-resistant topcoats can be applied the “same-day.” Also used for field
touch-up of inorganic zinc coating. Application methods include “dry-fall” under certain conditions (see Application).

COLORS 90-97 Reddish-gray

ZINC PIGMENT 83% by weight in dried film

SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS Series 90-97 meets AISC requirements of Class B surface with a mean slip coefficient no less than 0.50 and a tension
creep not in excess of .005 inches (.13mm).

Tneme-Zinc uses a zinc pigment which meets the requirements of ASTM D 520 Type III and contains less than .002%
lead. This level qualifies it to be classed as "non-lead" (less than 0.009% lead by weight) as defined in 16 CFR Part 1303 of
the Consumer Product Safety Commission regulations. Conforms to SSPC Paint 20, Type II.

This product is part of a coating system tested in accordance with ISO 12944-6 (2018). Contact your Tnemec
representative for coating system test results.

Published technical data and instructions are subject to change without notice. The online catalog at
www.tnemec.com should be referenced for the most current technical data and instructions or you may contact
your Tnemec representative for current technical data and instructions.

© July 27, 2021 by Tnemec Company, Inc. PDS9097

  COATING SYSTEM

TOPCOATS Series 1, 6, 27, 27WB, 46H-413, 66, L69, L69F, N69, N69F, V69, V69F, 73, 104, 113, 114, 115, 135, 161, 394, 1028, 1029,
1074, 1074U, 1075, 1075U
Note: Certain topcoat colors may not provide one-coat hiding depending on method of application. Contact your Tnemec
representative. Note: Series 90-97 must be exterior exposed for three days prior to topcoating with Series 1028 or 1029.
Note: Series 90-97 must be exterior exposed for one day prior to topcoating with Series 27WB.

Published technical data and instructions are subject to change without notice. The online catalog at
www.tnemec.com should be referenced for the most current technical data and instructions or you may contact
your Tnemec representative for current technical data and instructions.

  SURFACE PREPARATION

Severe Exposure: SSPC-SP10/NACE 2 Near-White Blast Cleaning with a minimum angular anchor profile of 1.5 mils.
Moderate Exposure: SSPC-SP6/NACE 3 Commercial Blast Cleaning with a minimum angular anchor profile of 1.5 mils.

Published technical data and instructions are subject to change without notice. The online catalog at
www.tnemec.com should be referenced for the most current technical data and instructions or you may contact
your Tnemec representative for current technical data and instructions.

  TECHNICAL DATA

VOLUME SOLIDS 63.0 ± 2.0% (mixed)

RECOMMENDED DFT 2.5 to 3.5 mils (65 to 90 microns) per coat.

CURING TIME Without 44-710

Temperature † To Handle To Recoat

75°F (24°C) 1 hour 4 hours

65°F (18°C) 1 1/2 hours 5 hours

55°F (13°C) 2 hours 6 hours

45°F (7°C) 2 1/2 hours 7 hours

35°F (2°C) 3 hours 8 hours

† 50% relative humidity. Curing time will vary with surface temperature, humidity and film thickness.
Note: For faster curing, low humidity and low-temperature applications, add No. 44-710 Urethane Accelerator (see
separate product data sheet).

VOLATILE ORGANIC COMPOUNDS Unthinned: 2.68 lbs/gallon (321 grams/litre)
Thinned 2.5% (No. 2 or No. 3 Thinner): 2.79 lbs/gallon (334 grams/litre)
Thinned 10% (No. 2 or No. 3 Thinner): 3.10 lbs/gallon (371 grams/litre)

HAPS Unthinned: 5.12 lbs/gal solids
Thinned 2.5%: 5.41 lbs/gal solids (No. 2 Thinner); 5.13 lbs/gal solids (No. 3 Thinner)
Thinned 10%: 6.27 lbs/gal solids (No. 2 Thinner); 5.16 lbs/gal solids (No. 3 Thinner)

THEORETICAL COVERAGE 1,011 mil sq ft/gal (24.8 m²/L at 25 microns). See APPLICATION for coverage rates.

NUMBER OF COMPONENTS Two: Part A and Part B

PACKAGING Four-Gallon and One-Gallon Kits: Consist of one premeasured container of liquid (Part A) and one premeasured
container of powder (Part B). When mixed, yields four gallons (15.1L) or one gallon (3.79L).

NET WEIGHT PER GALLON 23.94 ± 0.60 lbs (10.86 ± .27 kg)

STORAGE TEMPERATURE Minimum 20°F (-7°C)     Maximum 110°F (43°C)

TEMPERATURE RESISTANCE Dry (Continuous) 250°F (121°C)     Intermittent 300°F (149°C)

SHELF LIFE Part A: 12 months at recommended storage temperature.
Part B: 24 months at recommended storage temperature.

FLASH POINT - SETA Part A: 78°F (26°C)      Part B: N/A

HEALTH & SAFETY Paint products contain chemical ingredients which are considered hazardous. Read container label warning and Material
Safety Data Sheet for important health and safety information prior to the use of this product.
Keep out of the reach of children.

Published technical data and instructions are subject to change without notice. The online catalog at
www.tnemec.com should be referenced for the most current technical data and instructions or you may contact
your Tnemec representative for current technical data and instructions.

Page 1 of 2 Page 7



  APPLICATION

COVERAGE RATES  Dry Mils (Microns)  Wet Mils (Microns)  Sq Ft/Gal (m²/Gal)

 Suggested  3.0 (75)  5.0 (125)  337 (31.3)

 Minimum  2.5 (65)  4.0 (100)  404 (37.5)

 Maximum  3.5 (90)  5.5 (140)  289 (26.9)

Allow for overspray and surface irregularities. Film thickness is rounded to the nearest 0.5 mil or 5 microns. Application of
coating below minimum or above maximum recommended dry film thicknesses may adversely affect coating
performance.

MIXING Always use the entire contents of A and B components. Use an air-driven power mixer and keep material under constant
agitation while mixing. Slowly sift powder (Part B) into liquid (Part A).
–Do Not Reverse This Procedure– Adjust mixer speed to break up lumps and mix until the two components are
thoroughly blended. Strain through a 35 to 50 mesh (300 to 600 microns) screen before using. For spray application, keep
under low RPM agitation to prevent settling. For brush or roller application, stir frequently to prevent settling. Do not use
mixed material beyond pot life limits.

THINNING For spray, thin up to 10% or 3/4 pint (380 mL) per gallon with No. 2 Thinner if temperatures are below 80°F (27°C). Thin
up to 10% or 3/4 pint (380 mL) per gallon with No. 3 Thinner if temperatures are above 80°F (27°C). For brush or roller,
thin up to 10% or 3/4 pint (380 mL) with No. 3 Thinner.

POT LIFE 8 hours at 77°F (25°C) and 50% R.H.
Caution: This product cures with moisture acting as a catalyst. Incorporation of moisture or moisture laden
air (humidity) during use will shorten pot life. Avoid continual agitation at high RPM. When feasible keep containers
of mixed material covered during use.

APPLICATION EQUIPMENT Note: When finish coats are white or light colors, best hiding of this dark color primer can be achieved by spray
application.

Air Spray

 Gun  Fluid Tip  Air Cap  Air Hose ID  Mat’l Hose ID  Atomizing
Pressure  Pot Pressure

 DeVilbiss
JGA †  E  765 or 704  5/16” or 3/8”

(7.9 or 9.5 mm)

 3/8” or 1/2”
(9.5 or 12.7

mm)

 40-50 psi
(2.8-3.4 bar)

 10-20 psi
(0.7-1.4 bar)

† (with heavy mastic spring) Low temperatures or longer hoses will require additional pressure. Use pressure pot
equipped with an agitator and keep pressure pot at same level or higher than the spray gun. Compressed air must be dry.

Airless Spray

Tip Orifice  Atomizing Pressure  Mat’l Hose ID  Manifold Filter

 0.017”-0.021”
(430-535 microns)

Reversible Tip

 2400-3000 psi
(165-207 bar)

 1/4” or 3/8”
(6.4 or 9.5 mm)

 60 mesh
(250 microns)

Use appropriate tip/atomizing pressure for equipment, applicator technique and weather conditions.
Keep material agitated to prevent settling.
Roller: Use 1/4” or 3/8” (6.4 mm or 9.5 mm) synthetic woven nap roller covers. Stir material frequently or keep under
agitation to prevent settling.
Brush: Use high quality natural or synthetic bristle brushes.

SURFACE TEMPERATURE Minimum 35°F (2°C)    Maximum 140°F (60°C)     Maximum for Brush & Roller 120°F (49°C)
The surface should be dry and at least 5°F (3°C) above the dew point. Note: Series 44-710 Accelerator must be used if
the surface temperature is 35°F to 60°F (2°C to 16°C) and 20% to 40% relative humidity.

AMBIENT HUMIDITY Minimum 20%     Maximum 90%

CLEANUP Flush and clean all equipment immediately after use with the recommended thinner or xylene.

CAUTION Dry overspray can be wiped or washed from most surfaces. Satisfactory dry-fall performance depends upon height of
work, weather conditions and equipment adjustment. Low temperature is of particular concern. Test for each application
as follows: Spray from 15 to 25 feet towards paint container. The material then should readily wipe off. Note: Heat can
fuse-dry overspray to surfaces. Always clean dry overspray from hot surfaces before fusing occurs. Be aware that surface
temperatures can be higher than air temperatures.

© July 27, 2021 by Tnemec Company, Inc. PDS9097

PRODUCT DATA SHEET

TNEME-ZINC | SERIES 90-97

WARRANTY & LIMITATION OF SELLER'S LIABILITY: Tnemec Company, Inc. warrants only that its coatings represented herein meet the formulation standards of Tnemec Company, Inc. THE
WARRANTY DESCRIBED IN THE ABOVE PARAGRAPH SHALL BE IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES THAT EXTEND BEYOND THE DESCRIPTION ON THE FACE HEREOF. The
buyer's sole and exclusive remedy against Tnemec Company, Inc. shall be for replacement of the product in the event a defective condition of the product should be found to exist and the
exclusive remedy shall not have failed its essential purpose as long as Tnemec is willing to provide comparable replacement product to the buyer. NO OTHER REMEDY (INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST SALES, INJURY TO PERSON OR PROPERTY, ENVIRONMENTAL INJURIES OR ANY OTHER INCIDENTAL
OR CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS) SHALL BE AVAILABLE TO THE BUYER. Technical and application information herein is provided for the purpose of establishing a general profile of the coating and
proper coating application procedures. Test performance results were obtained in a controlled environment and Tnemec Company makes no claim that these tests or any other tests, accurately
represent all environments. As application, environmental and design factors can vary significantly, due care should be exercised in the selection and use of the coating.

        Tnemec Company, Inc.    6800 Corporate Drive    Kansas City, Missouri 64120-1372   +1 816-483-3400   www.tnemec.com

PDS9097© July 27, 2021 by Tnemec Company, Inc. Page 2 of 2 Page 8



EPOXOLINE ®

PRODUCT DATA SHEET

SERIES 142

  PRODUCT PROFILE

GENERIC DESCRIPTION Glass Flake Reinforced Modified Polyamine Epoxy

COMMON USAGE Abrasion resistant, high solids, epoxy coating which offers high-build edge protection and excellent corrosion resistance.
Contains glass flake and aluminum oxide for improved film integrity. For use on the interior and exterior of steel or
concrete tanks, pipes, and other heavy-duty equipment in industrial service.

COLORS Available in the following standard industrial colors: A11417 Light Gray, 1252 Beige, 35GR Black. Note: Epoxies chalk
with extended exposure to sunlight. Lack of ventilation, incomplete mixing, miscatalyzation or the use of heaters that emit
carbon dioxide and carbon monoxide during application and initial stages of curing may cause yellowing to occur.
Important: Due to the product's curing agent chemistry, color variations can be pronounced. However, these
changes in color are aesthetic only and will not affect performance or certifications. Contact your Tnemec
representative for more information.

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA Extensive test data available. Contact your Tnemec representative for specific test results.

Published technical data and instructions are subject to change without notice. The online catalog at
www.tnemec.com should be referenced for the most current technical data and instructions or you may contact
your Tnemec representative for current technical data and instructions.

© December 17, 2018 by Tnemec Company, Inc. PDS142

  COATING SYSTEM

SURFACER/FILLER/PATCHER Series 215, 217, 218

PRIMERS Steel: Self-priming, 1, L69, L69F, N69, N69F, 90E-92, 90G-1K97, 90-97, H90-97, 90G-98, 94-H2O
Concrete: Self-priming, L69, L69F, N69, N69F

TOPCOATS Exterior: Series 73, 290, 1028, 1029, 1074, 1074U, 1075, 1075U. Note: The following maximum recoat time applies when
using Series 73, 290, 1074, 1074U, 1075, 1075U: fourteen (14) days. If this time limit is exceeded, Series 142 must be
uniformly scarified prior to topcoating.

Published technical data and instructions are subject to change without notice. The online catalog at
www.tnemec.com should be referenced for the most current technical data and instructions or you may contact
your Tnemec representative for current technical data and instructions.

  SURFACE PREPARATION

PRIMED STEEL Immersion Service: Scarify the Series L69, L69F, N69, N69F, V69 or V69F prime coat surface by brush-blasting with fine
abrasive before topcoating if more than 30 days has elapsed since application and 142 is the specified topcoat.

STEEL Immersion Service: SSPC-SP10/NACE 2 Near-White Blast Cleaning with a minimum angular anchor profile of 2.0 mils
Non-Immersion Service: SSPC-SP6/NACE 3 Commercial Blast Cleaning with a minimum angular anchor profile of 2.0
mils

CONCRETE Allow new cast-in-place concrete to cure a minimum of 28 days at 75°F (24°C). Verify concrete dryness in accordance
with ASTM F 1869 “Standard Test Method for Measuring Moisture Vapor Emission Rate of Concrete Subfloor Using
Anhydrous Calcium Chloride” (moisture vapor transmission should not exceed three pounds per 1,000 square feet in a 24
hour period), F 2170 “Standard Test Method for Determining Relative Humidity in Concrete using in situ Probes”  (relative
humidity should not exceed 80%), or D 4263 “Standard Test Method for Indicating Moisture in Concrete by the Plastic
Sheet Method” (no moisture present). Prepare concrete surfaces in accordance with NACE No. 6/SSPC-SP13 Joint Surface
Preparation Standards and ICRI Technical Guidelines. Abrasive blast, shot-blast, water jet or mechanically abrade concrete
surfaces to remove laitance, curing compounds, hardeners, sealers and other contaminants and to provide a minimum
ICRI-CSP 3 surface profile. Large cracks, voids and other surface imperfections should be filled with a recommended filler
or surfacer.

ALL SURFACES Must be clean, dry and free of oil, grease, chalk and other contaminants.

Published technical data and instructions are subject to change without notice. The online catalog at
www.tnemec.com should be referenced for the most current technical data and instructions or you may contact
your Tnemec representative for current technical data and instructions.

  TECHNICAL DATA

VOLUME SOLIDS 82% ± 2.0% (mixed) †

RECOMMENDED DFT 8.0 to 20.0 mils (205 to 500 microns) in one coat. Note: Thickness requirements will vary with substrate, application
method and exposure. Contact your Tnemec representative.

CURING TIME Temperature To Handle To Topcoat Immersion

75°F (24°C) 6 hours 9 hours ‡ 7 days

35°F (0°C) 64 hours 72 hours ‡ 30 days

Curing time varies with surface temperature, air movement, humidity and film thickness. ‡Note: Specific application
requirements, including cure schedule and environmental conditions, must be followed when topcoating Series 142.
Contact Tnemec Technical Service for detailed instructions. Note: For overlaps, tie-ins, and touch-ups, maximum recoat
time with itself is seven days.

VOLATILE ORGANIC COMPOUNDS EPA Method 24
Unthinned: 1.28 lbs/gallon (153 grams/litre)
Thinned 5% (No. 4 Thinner): 1.55 lbs/gallon (186 grams/litre)
Thinned 5% (No. 60 Thinner): 1.55 lbs/gallon (186 grams/litre)
Thinned 10% (No. 4 Thinner): 1.78 lbs/gallon (214 grams/litre)
Thinned 10% (No. 60 Thinner): 1.74 lbs/gallon (208 grams/litre)†

HAPS Unthinned: 1.27 lbs/gal solids
Thinned 5% (No. 4 Thinner): 1.31 lbs/gal solids
Thinned 10% (No. 4 Thinner): 1.36 lbs/gal solids

THEORETICAL COVERAGE 1,315 mil sq ft/gal (32.2 m²/L at 25 microns). See APPLICATION for coverage rates. †

NUMBER OF COMPONENTS Two: Part A (amine) and Part B (epoxy)

MIXING RATIO By volume: One (Part A) to one (Part B)

PACKAGING  PART A  PART B  When Mixed

 Large Kit  1-5 gallon pail  1-5 gallon pail  10 gallons

 Small Kit  1-1 gallon can  1-1 gallon can  2 gallons

NET WEIGHT PER GALLON 13.18 ± 0.25 lbs (5.98 ± .11 kg) †

Page 1 of 2 Page 9



SSTORAGE TEMPERATURE Minimum 20°F (-7°C)     Maximum 110°F (43°C)
Prior to application, the material temperature should be above 60°F (16°C). It is suggested the material be stored at this
temperature at least 48 hours prior to use.

TEMPERATURE RESISTANCE (Dry) Continuous 250°F (121°C)     Intermittent 275°F (135°C)

SHELF LIFE 12 months at recommended storage temperature.

FLASH POINT - SETA Part A: 94°F (34°C)     Part B: 153°F (67°C)

HEALTH & SAFETY This product contains chemical ingredients which are considered hazardous. Read container label warning and Material
Safety Data Sheet for important health and safety information prior to the use of this product.
Keep out of the reach of children.

© December 17, 2018 by Tnemec Company, Inc. PDS142

PRODUCT DATA SHEET

EPOXOLINE ® | SERIES 142

  APPLICATION

COVERAGE RATES  Dry Mils (Microns)  Wet Mils (Microns)  Sq Ft/Gal (m²/Gal)

 Minimum  8.0 (205)  10.0 (255)  164 (15.3)

 Maximum  20.0 (500)  24.0 (610)  66 (6.1)

Allow for overspray and surface irregularities. Wet film thickness is rounded to the nearest 0.5 mil or 5 microns.
Application of coating below minimum or above maximum recommended dry film thicknesses may adversely affect
coating performance. †

MIXING Mix the entire contents of Part A and Part B separately. Scrape all of the Part A into the Part B pail by using a flexible
spatula. While under agitation use a variable speed drill with a PS Jiffy blade and mix the blended components for a
minimum of three minutes. During mixing, scrape the container walls to aid in complete blending of the two
components. Apply the mixed material within pot life limits after agitation. Both components must be above 50°F (10°C)
prior to mixing. For optimum application properties, the material temperature should be above 60°F (16°C). For
applications to surfaces between 35°F to 50°F (2°C to 10°C) allow mixed material to stand 30 minutes and restir before
use. Note: A large volume of material will set up quickly if not applied or lessened in mass. Caution: Do not reseal
mixed material. An explosion hazard may be created.

THINNING Caution: Do not add thinner to Part A prior to mixing with Part B. For airless spray, brush or roller, thin up to 5%
per gallon with No. 4 Thinner or No. 60 Thinner. For air spray, thin up to 10% per gallon with No. 4 or No. 60 Thinner.

POT LIFE 2 hours at 77°F (21°C)     1 hour at 90°F (32°C)

SPRAY LIFE 1 hour at 77°F (21°C)     30 minutes at 90°F (32°C)

APPLICATION EQUIPMENT Air Spray

 Gun  Fluid Tip  Air Cap  Air Hose ID  Mat’l Hose ID  Atomizing
Pressure  Pot Pressure

 DeVilbiss JGA  E  765 or 704  5/16” or 3/8”
(7.9 or 9.5 mm)

 3/8” or 1/2”
(9.5 or 12.7

mm)

 75-100 psi
(5.2-6.9 bar)

 25-35 psi
(1.7-2.4 bar)

Low temperatures or longer hoses require higher pot pressure.

Airless Spray

Tip Orifice  Atomizing Pressure  Mat’l Hose ID  Manifold Filter

 0.017”-0.021”
(430-535 microns)

 3400-4500 psi
(234-310 bar)

 3/8”
(9.5 mm)

 30 mesh
(600 microns)

Use appropriate tip/atomizing pressure for equipment, applicator technique and weather conditions.
Roller: Roller application optional when environmental restrictions do not allow spraying. Use 3/8” or 1/2” (9.5 mm to
12.7 mm) synthetic woven nap covers.
Brush: Recommended for small areas only. Use high quality natural or synthetic bristle brushes.

SURFACE TEMPERATURE Minimum 35°F (2°C)     Maximum 135°F (57°C)
The surface should be dry and at least 5°F (3°C) above the dew point.

CLEANUP Flush and clean all equipment immediately after use with the recommended thinner or MEK.

† Values may vary with color.

PRODUCT DATA SHEET

EPOXOLINE ® | SERIES 142

WARRANTY & LIMITATION OF SELLER'S LIABILITY: Tnemec Company, Inc. warrants only that its coatings represented herein meet the formulation standards of Tnemec Company, Inc. THE
WARRANTY DESCRIBED IN THE ABOVE PARAGRAPH SHALL BE IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES THAT EXTEND BEYOND THE DESCRIPTION ON THE FACE HEREOF. The
buyer's sole and exclusive remedy against Tnemec Company, Inc. shall be for replacement of the product in the event a defective condition of the product should be found to exist and the
exclusive remedy shall not have failed its essential purpose as long as Tnemec is willing to provide comparable replacement product to the buyer. NO OTHER REMEDY (INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST SALES, INJURY TO PERSON OR PROPERTY, ENVIRONMENTAL INJURIES OR ANY OTHER INCIDENTAL
OR CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS) SHALL BE AVAILABLE TO THE BUYER. Technical and application information herein is provided for the purpose of establishing a general profile of the coating and
proper coating application procedures. Test performance results were obtained in a controlled environment and Tnemec Company makes no claim that these tests or any other tests, accurately
represent all environments. As application, environmental and design factors can vary significantly, due care should be exercised in the selection and use of the coating.

        Tnemec Company, Inc.    6800 Corporate Drive    Kansas City, Missouri 64120-1372   +1 816-483-3400   www.tnemec.com

PDS142© December 17, 2018 by Tnemec Company, Inc. Page 2 of 2 Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



 Sebastian River
Improvement District

   Financial Report For
June 2023

Page 206



Page 207


	Seabatian River Improvement District - July 19, 2023 Special Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	June 14, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Lateral C – Radial Gates Maintenance Recommendation
	Discussion Regarding Offer Package from FDOT
	Financial Update




